
Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

 
Superintendent                  Business Manager 
Jack Copps                                                                                                                                                   Janelle Mickelson 

          324-2001                               324-2040 
 

Board Work Session 
 

Capital High School 
100 Valley Drive. Helena, MT 59601 

 
April 24, 2018 

3:30pm tour / 4:00pm meeting 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

  I.         TOUR OF SCHOOL / CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
               

II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT:  This is the time for comment on public matters that are 
not on the agenda.  Public matters do not include any pending legal matters, private personnel 
issues or private student issues.  Please do not attempt to address such issues at this time or you 
will be ruled out of order.  The Board cannot enter into a discussion during General Public 
Comment. 
 

III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
 

IV. RECOGNITION 
1. Montana Economic Challenge Team 

 
V. CAPITAL HIGH SCHOOL PRESENTATION (See Attached) 

 
VI. JIM DARCY FINAL SCHOOL DESIGN PRESENTATION BY DOWLING STUDIO 

ARCHITECTS 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Items for Action 

a. 3-20-18 Board Work Session Minutes (See Attached) 
b. 4-5-18 Board Special Meeting Minutes (See Attached) 
c. Jim Darcy Construction Budget Approval (See Attached) 
d. New Bryant School Final Plat & Quit Claim Deed (See Attached) 

 
2. Consent Action Items 

a. Personal Property Surplus for Maintenance Vehicles (See Attached) 
 

3. Items for Information 



Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

a. Rossiter Flood Mitigation FEMA Grant 
 

VIII. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
 

IX. BOARD COMMENTS 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



Montana Economics Challenge 2018 
Montana State Winner: David Ricardo Division 

 
School: Capital High School 

Teacher: Mr. Kent Haab 
Team Name: Util Noodles 

Students: Alex Northey, Mariah Thomas, Sophie Sticht 
 

Top Scoring Individuals – All from CHS 
1st Place: Jonah Bibeau 
2nd Place: Alex Northey 

3rd Place: Norris Blossom 



Capital High School
School Board Presentation

4.24.18



Where are we at:

• Clubs/Activities
• AP courses/data
• Dual Credit courses found at CHS
• ACT data
• District Writing Assessment Data
• Interventions
• Role of the BLC
• MBI



Clubs at CHS

• There are at least 40 clubs at CHS
• They range from meeting at lunchtime to after school
• Get involved!







Art Seen



Fundraiser for L and C County Library

• The club came up with ideas for their design and began working on 
them in February 

• The completed houses were on display at the Lewis and Clark Library 
for the month of April and all were up for sale

• Raised $1000 for the Lewis and Clark Public Library



AP Data

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Capital High School (270449)

Total AP Students 126 110 118 136 190

Number of Exams 179 171 180 191 328

AP Students with Scores 3+ 87 81 70 84 128

% of Total AP Students with Scores 3+ 69 73.6 59.3 61.8 67.4



AP Courses at CHS

• Human Geography (new)
• European History
• American History
• American Government
• Spanish
• Biology
• Chemistry
• Physics (new)

• Environmental Studies (new)
• Calculus
• English Language
• English Literature



Dual Credit Courses found at CHS:

• WRIT 101-College Writing
• LIT 110-Intro to Lit
• WRIT 111-Technical Writing
• COMM 111-Intro to Public Speaking
• M111-Technical Math
• M121-College Algebra
• M151-Pre- Calculus
• M171-Calculus I
• STAT 216-Intro to Statistics
• ACTG 101-Accounting Procedures



Cont.

• CAPP 154-MS Word
• CAPP 156-MS Excel
• MCH 234-CNC Milling Operations 1
• WLDG 112-Cutting Processes
• AUTO 104-Auto Mechanics
• M131-College Calculus
• M232-Linear Algebra
• CS110 -Computer Science



How much do students save? In the fall…

In our dual credit programs through Helena College and Carroll College 
we have 113 students taking 194 dual credit classes. With the Dual 
Credit average class costing $51 per 1 credits (most classes are 3 or 4 
credits) and the average cost per credit for full-time students in 
Montana being about $450, our students saved approximately 
$234,000. 



In the spring, and for the entire year…

• We had approximately 144 more classes selected by these same 
students when enrolling in College Lit, College Statistics, Auto, and 2nd

semester of Word, Excel, and Speech

• When you add fall to spring, you are looking at 338 sections @ $154 
($52,052 spent) versus $1350 per 3 credits ($456,300) So for the year 
the savings looks closer to $404,248- Almost half a million dollars!



ACT Data Summary

• All data compiled and provided by Joan Meyer



59.6% 65.5%
73.0%

64.7% 61.1%

12.4%
12.3%

8.6%
13.8%

13.0%

28.0% 22.2% 18.4% 21.5% 25.9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

CHS 
ACT English Test 

Percentage Distribution for ACT Benchmark

Met (18 and above) Close (16 and 17) Below (15 and below)

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

ACT English Benchmark - 18

The percent meeting 
benchmark in English in 
Montana is decreasing.
• 2014 - 57.72%
• 2015 - 53.98%
• 2016 - 53.00%
• 2017 - 52.98%
• 2018 - 49.47%

In the 2016 cohort, CHS 
posted the highest 
percent of students 
meeting benchmark in AA 
High Schools.



Eng 4 AP
w/

Eng 3 AP
Eng 2 H
Eng 1 H

Eng 4 AP
w/wo

Eng 3 AP
Eng 3 H
Eng 2 H

College Writing
& Literature

English 4
Core Options

Tech
Writing

2014 100.0% 100.0% 79.0% 51.0% 20.0%
2015 100.0% 100.0% 96.1% 55.8% 35.2%
2016 100.0% 100.0% 82.1% 68.4% 68.4%
2017 100.0% 100.0% 74.6% 55.3%
2018 100.0% 100.0% 80.7% 46.2% 37.5%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

CHS
ACT English Test 

Percent at or above ACT Benchmark in English Course Patterns

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

8% - Transferred senior year
4% - Applied Eng. 4Percent of students in course patterns -- 2018 cohort

14% 5%42%26%

Examining ACT 
performance in relation 
to course patterns 
informs instruction. 





CHS 
ACT Writing Test

Distribution Percentage for MUS Admission Requirement
(No ACT Benchmark for Writing)

62.9% 67.2% 63.7%

24.4% 16.0% 24.5%

12.7% 16.7% 11.8%

2016 2017 2018
Met MUS Requirement Nearing MUS Requirement Below MUS Requirement

Distribution 2016 (2-12 score) 2017 (1-36 score) 2018 (2-12 score)

Below 5 and below 16 and below 5 and below

Nearing 6 17 and 18 6

Met or Exceeded 7 and above 19 and above 7 and above

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

District Writing Assessment - Implemented 2014
• 2014 cohort - CHS was the 2nd lowest 

performing AA High School 
• 2017 cohort - CHS was the 3rd highest 

performing AA High School 
• OPI hasn’t posted the AA High School Writing 

scores for the 2018 cohort 

District Literacy Initiative - Implemented 2016
Yolanda Westerberg, Literacy Instructional 
Consultant
• 2016-17 - Focus on Elementary 
• 2017-18 - Focus on MS and HS

-- Montana University System, MUS Admission Requirements



Eng 4 AP
With

Eng 3 AP
Eng 2 H
Eng 1 H

Eng 4 AP
w/wo

Eng 3 AP
Eng 3 H
Eng 2 H

College Writ 101
&

Lit 121

English 4
Core Options

Tech
Writing

2016 90.9% 95.0% 76.3% 54.0% 47.3%
2017 100.0% 97.1% 80.2% 60.6%
2018 100.0% 100.0% 75.9% 54.5% 56.2%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

CHS
ACT Writing Test 

Percent at or above MUS Admission Requirement for Writing

2016 2017 2018

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

Over the last three years, 
56.5% of the students 
enrolled in Core Options 
were at or above the MUS 
admission requirement for 
Writing. 



42.0% 47.2% 48.6% 50.5% 52.9%

14.0%
13.5%

18.0% 18.5% 9.8%

44.0% 39.3% 33.4% 31.0% 37.3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

CHS 
ACT Reading Test

Percentage Distribution for ACT Benchmark

Met (22 and above) Close (20 and 21) Below (19 and below)

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

There has been a steady increase in 
the percent meeting benchmark each 
year at CHS. 

In the 2018 cohort, 38.66% of 
Montana students met the ACT 
Reading benchmark compared to 
52.9% of CHS students. 

ACT Reading Benchmark - 22

District Literacy Initiative - Implemented 2016
Yolanda Westerberg, Literacy Instructional 
Consultant, started work with MS and HS during 
the 2017-18 school year. 



Amer Gov AP
Amer Hist AP

With one or more
Europ Hist AP

Psych AP
Econ AP

Amer Gov AP
Amer Hist AP

Without
Europ Hist AP

Psych AP
Econ AP

Only One
Amer Gov AP
Amer Hist AP
Europ Hist AP

Psych AP
Econ AP

Electives
One or more
excluding AP

electives

Amer Gov
Amer Hist
World Cult

Without
any

electives
2014 100.0% 95.8% 80.0% 34.6% 27.1%
2015 100.0% 88.0% 53.8% 43.8% 29.2%
2016 100.0% 68.7% 70.0% 35.9% 33.7%
2017 100.0% 90.4% 59.3% 58.9% 40.7%
2018 73.3% 90.9% 57.6% 41.1% 35.2%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

CHS 
ACT Reading Test

Percent at or Above Benchmark in Social Studies Course Patterns

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

41%

AP Class Enrollment Increased
• 21% - 2017 cohort
• 41% - 2018 cohort

+23% (2018)

16% 32% 7% - Transferred, withdrew, other
2% - Amer. Gov. through MT Digital AcademyPercent of students in course patterns -- 2018 cohort

The percent meeting 
benchmark increases 
significantly with one Advanced 
Placement class.





37.3%
50.4% 46.5% 46.9% 40.5%

10.2%

7.9% 10.2% 8.7%
8.5%

52.5%
41.7% 43.3% 44.4% 51.0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

CHS 
ACT Math Test

Percentage Distribution for ACT Benchmark

Met (22 and above) Close (20 and 21) Below (19 and below)

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

Although overall student 
performance is important, it is 
critical that we examine 
performance in relation to 
courses completed. 

ACT Math Benchmark - 22



Calc.,
Linear

Alg., & DE

Calculus
AP

Calculus
Honors

Pre-Calc.
Honors Pre-Calculus *College

Algebra
Algebra

II

CHS 2014 100.0% 100.0% 87.5% 40.9% 13.6% 16.8%
CHS 2015 93.3% 96.6% 81.2% 58.8% 55.5% 36.0%
CHS 2016 100.0% 97.3% 100.0% 67.6% 28.2% 26.5%
CHS 2017 100.0% 97.0% 100.0% 83.3% 74.2% 46.0% 22.5%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s
CHS 

ACT Math Test
Percent at or above Benchmark Based on Highest Math Class Taken

Name change

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

Data for 2018 cohort not yet completed

+23% (2018)

+51% (2018)

+60% (2018)

* Includes Algebra III in 2015

With each additional higher 
level math class, the percent 
meeting benchmark increases.

Math Initiative
Starting in the fall of 2013, 
additional assessment and 
intervention programs were 
introduced into the 
elementary and middle 
school math programs 
resulting in a significant 
increase in math proficiency. 
The first wave of students 
entered high school in the fall 
of 2017 and will test in the 
spring of 2020.

ACT recommends that 
students take three or more 
years of math.





33.8%
43.7% 40.0% 39.6% 44.0%

16.5%
11.9% 24.5%

14.6% 11.1%

49.7% 44.4%
35.5%

45.8% 44.9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s

CHS 
ACT Science Test

Percentage Distribution for ACT Benchmark

Met (22 and above) Close (20 and 21) Below (19 and below)

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

ACT Science Benchmark - 23

In the 2018 cohort, CHS posted the 
second highest percent of students 
meeting benchmark in the AA High 
Schools.

In the 2018 cohort, 31.07% of 
Montana students met the Science 
benchmark compared to 44% of CHS 
students.



Chem AP
With

Physics

Chem AP
No

Physics

Chem 2 H
With

Physics

Chem 2 H
No

Physics

Physics
With

Chem 1

Physics
No

Chem 1

Chem 1
With
Bio 2

Chem 1
No

Physics
No Bio2

Bio 2 H
No

Chem
No

Physics

Physical
Sci

Highest
Class

Bio 1
Highest

Class

2014 88.8% 83.3% 82.6% 44.4% 50.0% 29.3% 40.0% 25.0% 8.4%
2015 93.7% 76.1% 59.2% 55.5% 60.0% 44.6% 28.5% 29.6% 17.9%
2016 100.0% 46.6% 73.6% 62.5% 33.3% 40.9% 33.3% 27.2% 18.1%
2017 80.0% 83.3% 100.0% 100.0% 78.5% 66.6% 38.4% 36.3% 33.3% 37.5% 15.5%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f S
tu

de
nt

s
CHS

ACT Science Test
Percentage Distributions Based on Highest Science Class Taken

Data for 2018 cohort not yet completed

ACT recommends that 
students take three or more 
years of science.

New course

2 yrs.

3 yrs.

4 yrs.

2018 Cohort – Percent Meeting 
Benchmark
• 15.5% – Two years of science
• 36.3% -- Twofold increase with 

the addition of Chemistry 
• 78.5% -- Fivefold increase with 

the addition of Physics

--
H

el
en

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 A
C

T 
A

na
ly

si
s

The number of students taking Physics 
without Chemistry is less than 10 in every 
cohort, while the number of students 
taking Physics with Chemistry ranges from 
19-42 in the four cohorts.





District Writing Assessment 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Winter 2014 (frosh) Spring 2015 Fall 2015** (sophs.) Spring 2016 Fall 2016 (juniors) Spring 2017* Fall 2017 (seniors)

Class of 2018 (frosh when DWA began)

B S I



• High school writing assessments use the format of the ACT writing section 
and are scored using the 6-point ACT writing rubric. Each essay is scored by 
at least two scorers. (If the two scores vary by more than 1 point, a resolver 
assigns the final score for the essay.) The two scores are averaged together 
for a score of 1-6. (Half points can be given, such as a 4.5 if one scorer gave 
the essay a 5 and one gave it a 4.) ACT adds the two scores together for a 
total point scale of 12 instead of 6.

• B = Benchmark – 3.5 -6 (would be 7-12 on the 12-point ACT scale –
benchmark for MUS = 7)

• S = Strategic – 2.5 and 3 (would be 5-6 on the 12-point ACT scale)
• I = Intensive – 0-2 (would be 0-4 on the 12-point ACT scale)



Mentoring Program
Organized by Mrs. O’Dell for Seven years
At risk Freshmen students (determined by Failing 

at least one class 2nd semester of their 8th grade 
year)
2015-16 Added Sophomores needing assistance
Over the course of 13 semesters the program has 

averaged 49% of the mentored students not 
failing a single class



Mentoring 2017-18, 1st Semester
30 Students (14 Frosh/16 Soph)
15 students did not fail a single class (50%)
7 failed 1 class
4 failed 2 classes
3 Failed 3 classes
2 failed 4 classes
0 failed 5 classes or more
32 classes failed out of 191 classes taken for 16.7%



SLC DATA 2017-18, 1st Semester
Failures Sem 1 2017-18 Brown Gold Gray Non-SLC
Students: 5 F's
Students: 4 F's (1) 4
Students: 3 F's (1) 3 (1) 3
Students: 2 F's (2) 4 (7) 14
Students: 1 F (6) 6 (3) 3 (1) 1 (12) 12
Total F's 17 3 1 29
Total % Failures 5.7% 1.5% 1.1% 2.9%

# of Students Brown Gold Gray Non-SLC
Sem 1 Students: 2= F's 4 0 0 8


Sheet1

		# of Students		Sem 1		Sem 2

		Brown		60

		Gold		40

		Gray		54

		Non-SLC		200



		Avg. Absences		Sem 1		Sem 2

		Brown		5.99

		Gold		5.78

		Gray		3.93

		Non-SLC		4.53



		Discipline		Sem. 1		Sem. 2

		Brown		15.0%

		Gold		20.0%

		Gray		2.0%

		Non-SLC		9.0%



		GPA		Sem. 1		Sem. 2

		Brown		2.99

		Gold		3.30

		Gray		3.57

		Non-SLC		3.29

		Failures Sem 1 2017-18		Brown		Gold		Gray		Non-SLC

		Students: 5 F's

		Students: 4 F's		(1) 4

		Students: 3 F's		(1) 3						(1) 3

		Students: 2 F's		(2) 4						(7) 14

		Students: 1 F		(6) 6		(3) 3		(1) 1		(12) 12

		Total F's		17		3		1		29

		Total % Failures		5.7%		1.5%		1.1%		2.9%

		# of Students		Brown		Gold		Gray		Non-SLC

		Sem 1 Students: 2= F's		4		0		0		8



2017-18 Sem 1 SLC		






Role of the BLC

• oversee 53 PLC teams
• scope/sequence/pacing documents, common assessments, data collection 

and analysis, and technology
• literacy coach- focus on cross-curricular writing
• instructional coach- help teachers be reflective about their teaching 

practices by setting goals and working toward achieving those goals
• plan, prepare for, and administer twice-yearly district high school writing 

assessment (along with other high school BLC and Jilyn Chandler)
• assist with district curriculum work and literacy training – will move into 

full training mode at times with other BLCs beginning next year
• assist with district Title 1 and MCLP grant work



Capital High 
School—MBI/MTSS





Platinum Level Recognition 

• Sustaining school-wide foundation of MBI and Effective Classroom 
Practices and successfully implementing Tier II interventions with 

integrity.



MBI/MTSS 



Capital Code
Be Responsible

Be on time and prepared

Take ownership for your 
actions ~ be honest

Take care of yourself 
physically, mentally, 

emotionally

Ask for what you need

Know where you stand 
academically – check 

Power School regularly 

Help others ~ Volunteer

Be Respectful
Treat others as you wish 

to be treated (Golden 
Rule)

Use appropriate language

Respect personal space, 
property, school grounds

Apologize when you make 
a mistake 

Use manners 
~please/thank you

Be a Graduate

Meet / Exceed graduation 
requirements 

Comprehend the bigger 
picture in the world ~ and 

your role in it

Be academically prepared 
to get to the next phase of 

your life
Value the education of 

others as a way to better 
educate yourself ~ Be a 

lifelong learner

Be a Capital High 
Ambassador



Teaching “The Code”

• Teaching the expectations:
• *Class Assemblies 
• *Student led classroom discussions
• *Weekly expectations via announcements, emails and broadcasts on 

TV’s in foyers/library

• GOAL: Continue to provide a safe and positive learning environment 





Student Voice ~ Teacher Voice ~ Parent Voice 

• Student Voice: Completed
• Teacher Voice: Completed
• Parent Voice: Completed 



New Developments

• *Revision of hat policy
• *School Safety - parking 
• *Whole School Engagement—recognition at respect rallies
• *Youth Leadership — working with students with disabilities 

(PEERS Club, MBI/YAC)
• *Unified Sports Opportunities—Special Olympics (Track and Field)



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

 
                            

Board Work Session 
 

Warren Elementary School 
2690 Old York Road 

Helena, Montana 59602 
 

Tuesday, March 20, 2018 
3:30pm tour / 4:00pm meeting 

 
MINUTES 

 
All parties met in the gym to begin a tour of Warren Elementary School. 
 
ATTENDANCE – Present unless otherwise noted. 
Sarah Sullivan, Board Chair, Excused 
Terry Beaver, Board Vice Chair 
Tyler Emmert, Trustee, Excused 
Sanjay Talwani, Trustee  
Jeff Hindoien, Trustee 
Luke Muszkiewicz, Trustee 
Elizabeth “Libby” Goldes, Trustee 
Karen Goldsberry, Trustee, Excused 
Jennifer Walsh, Trustee, Excused 
 
Jack Copps, Superintendent of Schools 
Greg Upham, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 
Janelle Mickelson, Business Manager 
Barb Ridgway, Staff & Student Services Administrator 
Trish Klock, Helena Education Association President 
Kalli Kind, Director of Support Services 
Sarah Bohorquez, Recording Transcriptionist 
 
PRESENTOR at Warren Elementary School:  Principal Tim McMahon 

 
 

I. TOUR OF SCHOOL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/CALL TO ORDER 
Board Vice Chair Terry Beaver called the session to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
II. REVIEW OF AGENDA 

No changes 
 

III. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

No public comment 
 

 
IV. WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL’S PRESENTATION 

   
Tim McMahon, principal of Warren Elementary School, showed the attached power point 
presentation.   
 
Principal Tim McMahon’s focus at Warren begins with three areas:  Academic Growth, 
School Climate, and Technology.  Academic Growth encompasses academic achievement, 
identification of weekly critical skills, data analysis, school schedule & program revisions, 
vertical and horizontal curriculum alignment, assessment design and use for instructional 
guiding. School Climate involves building student success, Warren universals, data analysis, 
behavior interventions, flexible grouping for academic support as well as professional, 
development and emotional supports.  Technology is curriculum integration, student 
engagement, targeted fundraising, professional development, and interactive projectors.  
Principal McMahon states if you want to change behavior for students, make them students.  
Of the school schedule that makes Warren Elementary School unique is that he runs each 
grade core subjects at the same time as to create small groups based on skills needed.  His 
staff is not told how to teach but how to judge its effectiveness based on data.  He shared a 
graph displaying the numbers associated with Warren staff as well as years of experience in 
education verses years of experience.  Principal McMahon pointed out that when Warren 
welcomed a full time counselor, it freed up a lot of what he was having to do.  See page 2 of 
the attached presentation for the current staff breakdown.  
 
Warren’s Elementary School Student Demographics show student enrollment is currently 327 
students with a five-year average of 323.  Of the student population, 41.7% qualify for free 
and reduced lunch.  However, lunch charges continue to climb and are over $9,360 at this 
point.  At Warren, there are three sections of K-2 (classes kept at 22 or below) and two 
sections of grades 3-5 (class average at 27). Montessori has 3 students while PEAK has 11 
students.  In addition, 57 students present in Speech/Language services officially but 13 
receive some sort of support through RTI. Individualized Education Plans (IEP) makes up 
20% (65 students) of the population. There are 56 students that make up the $5,411 Angel 
Fund monies and currently 116 students receive weekly food packs.   
 
Currently, 369 students are within the Warren School boundary.  Of those, 303 attending the 
elementary school with an addition of 24 considered out of boundary.  The following is a 
breakdown of those students out of the boundary area: Sibling Rule Families – 10, 
Completing year – 10, Boundary exception previous years – 4.  Of the parent choice students, 
35 moved and chose to keep kids at the same school.  The process is students are offered a 
seat and if they turn it down, they are then considered parent choice.  The Warren students 
that live in but attend out make up 78 students.  Parents of 61 students, chose to either have 
students stay at their school after a transfer or moved in but stayed at school previous 
attended. There are 17 students on the school’s waitlist. The average yearly attendance for the 
past 3 and ½ years is approximately 94%.  Attendance is viewed on a Tier system in which 
Tier 1:  Under 6 absences, Tier 2:  6-12 absences, and Tier 3:  Over 10 absences all within a 
semester time.  Currently, 78% fall in Tier 1, 14% in Tier 2, and 8% in Tier 3.  Principal 
McMahon stated the school wide target is to have 80% Average Daily Attendance.  Research 
shows high mobility rates are associated with lower school engagement, poor grades in 
reading and math, high risk of dropping out, and low test scores.   



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

 
The STAR Reading and Math Cohort are done three times a year.  This norm referenced 
assessment where thousands of kids across the US and other countries compare. The data 
shows Helena School District’s as well as Warren Elementary School. Principal McMahon 
pointed out that there is always a dip from spring to fall as students loose some teachings over 
the summer.  When students come in the fall the average is 35% proficient and by the end of 
the year is 80+%.   See page 6 of the attached presentation for graphing results.  
 
Every student goes to interventions at Warren. This master schedule allows for small groups 
across the grades to get the specific skills needed.  At the end of the day, all students go back 
to home room to allow for closure.  See page 7 of the attached presentation for lists of 
Interventions.  
 
Warren Elementary Parent Teacher Organization (PTO) is a core group of people that meet 
regularly with many supporters.  The meetings occur six times a year 6:00 p.m. on a rotation 
schedule in the staff lounge.  Their fall fundraiser earned $11,370.  The PTO awarded $18,000 
to the school targeted to the purchase of interactive projectors for nine classrooms.  All staff 
are eligible for $100 donation per year for classroom supplies if requested and are eligible for 
another $250 through educator targeted projects.  Spring Fundraiser targeted for Sport Court 
to replace Asphalt on big kids playground with a $20,000 goal.  PTO events: Fall BBQ, 
Reindeer Express (Christmas shopping made easy and cheap for students), 100 sundaes, 
Teacher Supper twice a year on Parent/Teacher Conference nights.  
 
Questions and Comments:  
Principal McMahon was asked if there was anything the Board could do for him and Warren.  
He stated that a gym and library would be ideal. Libby Goldes said she is always impressed 
by Principal McMahon and his master schedule.  She asked about the effect on specials and 
was told that the planning of the master schedule is very hard.  He stated that he is already 
stretched thin and if another school added a classroom, the schedule would not work. Luke 
Muszkiewicz commented that he is thankful for the tour and acknowledged the hardships it 
has probably caused for him, his staff and families.  Terry Beaver asked how many walkers 
they have this year and was told the number is much lower this year, specifically due to the 
weather.   
 
*Agenda was changed to allow for presentations from design teams for Bryant and Central. 
 
Central Architect Design:  SMA Klint Fisher and Tim Meldrum presented the final design for 
Central School. Klint Fisher pointed out not much has changed on both the site plan and floor 
plan as previously presented.  Bid packages have gone out and huge thank you to everyone 
that is a part of this project.  Seventh avenue gym will remain. Fire access into playground, 
will be paved asphalt. There will be a warming kitchen but it will not contain flyers.  
Montessori on the first floor and Kindergarten restrooms in classrooms for smaller kiddos.  
Discussion ensued about the music wall being able to open up.  It was assured that the music 
department would make the choice of when to open up that wall.  There is flexibility to have 
large events such as Holiday Programs and Talent Shows.  If it were to be a solid wall, that 
option would not be there and it would be too costly to make a change at that time.  Terry 
Beaver asked if the computer lab has a specialized cooling session.  Yes, the equipment will 
be as well as AC throughout entire building including gym.  A lot of flexible furniture 
throughout the school. Large library space, having space for kids to move around.  Tim 
Meldrum discussed the exterior of the building and how they wanted it to remain historic but 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

add contemporary; providing as much balance as we could.  Slopes on the site and designing a 
building in general.  Feedback from parents, staff and historical committee.  Of 8th avenue to 
have celebrated entry.  The design has also gone with sinking the building in a little bit with 
comforts.  Warren entrance and natural daylight, energy efficient, column proportion and best 
practices.  Metal material that looks like wood and/or a warm material to help with the 
historical feel.  It was critical to connect to downtown stakeholders. Terry Beaver stated Kalli 
Kind has found some sculptures and he wondered if they were going to be in the structure. 
These will be incorporated and the architects are exploring options of how to do that and 
where to put them.  Superintendent Jack Copps stated there has been some discussion about 
welcoming a new mascot from a tiger to a wolf.  Libby asked about the pieces of the arch and 
where that should go.  Looks like it could be in the space that that creates in the beginning 
entrance.  Terry pointed out with the winter we just had, how will that affect sunken area.  
Where would plow get in?  Front is accessible and have accommodated for snow removal.  
Where would it be stacked?  The architects said the design is adequate although it is a tight 
site, the area is there to get the plow in.  Kalli said we have small equipment that can go in 
there and custodial staff to work it.  Luke Muszkiewicz commented that it looked great and 
excited to break ground tomorrow. He asked if the committee has seen the final draft.  The 
committee has not met but there really aren’t changes to bring to them.  Luke asked about 
cleaning these large windows and it was noted that there is the equipment to clean the glass.  
Luke asked Jack if he has had conversations with people and what they want to see in the 
kitchen.  Lots of conversations and commercial kitchens were not being put in to the schools.    
Terry asked how many staff will be in the building and how does that parking accommodate 
them?  There are 40 on staff at Central for parking.  It was shared that there are other options 
for them to park....not the most convenient but have done best for what they can do for that 
site.  Libby asked where the garbage container is and was told access of 8th avenue side.  
Tomorrow, March 21, 2018 at 1:30 at Central south east corner is ground breaking.   
 
Bryant Architect Design: Mosiac Architects Ben Tintinger and Jeff Downhour presented the 
final design for Bryant School.  Breaking ground tomorrow.  Underway with bid portions of 
the project and Spring Break will be a big deal for moving materials.  The school completion 
date is August 2019 with the demolition scheduled for June 2019 of current school building.    
Ben stated the plan hasn't really changed much since the previous presentation.  East 
courtyard is spill out from pub.  Coming in to classroom, teaching wall on one side and then 
breakout for each grade.  The Hub where kids will eat, Main library is on 2nd floor and then 
the gym.  This plan was created based on the site plan we have as there were many constraints 
and utility issues. Luke Muszkiewicz asked about 1st floor sematic and center pub.  Ben 
pointed out from the Hub you can see all areas.  Administration is on the South side.  The 
music room has an acoustical wall that will spin and a twist just for specific events.  Space in 
front of wall for school assembly without having to open wall. Will have a curtain in front of 
it for impact of ball or such.  Luke asked about where the PBIS room has a lot of natural light? 
Yes, on the east side there are large windows.  Terry Beaver asked what is the advantage of 
manual wall verses other and was told cost.  Material can withhold and has fabric on them and 
a good system. Libby Goldes addressed issues involving music room, she wants to make sure 
the teachers feel they had a voice.  Bryant’s Principal Crawford approached the mic and said 
yes, it has been all teacher driven.  Music teacher has been involved and helped designed the 
room.  Luke addressed Principal Crawford to describe the PBIS room.  He shared that about a 
dozen students with low volatility teacher.  The current space in is hard to keep teachers safe.  
Going to be a lot safer.  Is this going to give way to the future .  He believes there will be the 
need and the setup for CSCT services. The natural light and being able to get outside will 
benefit as well.  Fast growing segment of what we have coming to the schools.  Terry asked 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

about the common area the beams are exposed and some acoustic disks.  A lot of exposed 
structure and it comes to cost.  All classrooms have acoustics "clouds" and some have 
lighting.  At each intersection there is a circular light. Libby asked about historical entities to 
incorporate?  The biggest one is the bell tower and the plan is to fundraise for the project as it 
currently just sits up on the roof.  Want to make more of a celebration of that bell.  There is 
also a mural to use in the interior.  Libby asked about solar panel and wondered if is that an 
option in the future.  Yes, there is a grid to be accommodated at some point. 
 
Tomorrow, March 21, 2018 at 9:00 by the south side playground is ground breaking.   
 
Tomorrow, March 21, 2018 at 11:00 is Jim Darcy ground breaking by the mustang wall. 
 

V.  NEW BUSINESS 
1.  Items for Action 

a.  2-27-18 Board Work Session Minutes: Motion:  Jeff Hindoien moved to approve 
amended minutes from 2-27-18.  Luke Muszkiewicz seconded. Public comment – 
none.  The motion passed. 

b.  Request to Correct Executive Committee Meeting 1-9-18 Minutes:  Libby Goldes 
moved to approve amended minutes from 1-9-18.  Luke Muszkiewicz seconded.  
Public comment – none.  The motion passed. 

c.  Approval of INTERCAP Loan:  restructuring of Broadwater roof.  Luke 
Muszkiewicz asked Janelle Mickelson about how long on voted levy - 6 years.  
Luke asked why are we doing it through a loan and Janelle said it frees up some of 
building reserve for other projects and saves us time.   Luke is very supportive but 
we are going to pay a premium and interest.  Jeff Hindoien pointed out we don't 
have $800,000 and so the motivation is that we don't have it. There is too much else 
that needs to be done and we would be put ourselves at risk if we used other money.  
Motion:  Jeff Hindoien made a motion to approve the INTERCAP loan.  Luke 
Muszkiewicz seconded.  Public comment – none.  The motion passed. 

d.  Budgets for new Bryant and Central Schools.  Assistant Superintendent Greg 
Upham said from personal experience that this is the best route and way to do the 
work.  Term “value of engineer” you put the designs on paper and then it becomes a 
challenge without compromising the quality of the buildings and the classroom.  At 
the end of the day that is the most important.  Kalli Kind provided a presentation via 
PowerPoint of the budget numbers (see attached document).  Contractor, Dick 
Anderson has been great in gaining and providing price.  Kalli stated that tonight we 
are asking the board to approve Bryant Budget for the school.  What is contained in 
this pricing is the construction fees and contingencies.  The more money we can put 
into contingencies the more we can utilize as things come up.  The total budget is 
$13,963,107 which is approximately 215 per square foot. Luke Muszkiewicz asked 
what the purpose was of approving the overall budget.  Kalli stated that the Board 
does not approve each bid as that is done by the GCCM. Jeff Hindoien said as those 
come in they turn into “hard monies” and that is what we are looking at now. Libby 
Goldes asked about the price of steel and has that gone out to bid?  Kalli indicated it 
has not for Bryant and Riley Ford with Dick Anderson construction said it has a 
GMP price for that steel.  Libby asked if it sits well within the 63,000,000 and yes 
says Kalli.  Jeff said this is just a recognition and giving these guys the ability to go 
out and bid.  Luke asked if we are at or under budget.  Kalli stated we are right 
where we need to be.  She pointed out that there is a slight difference in cost per 
square foot as Central is higher because of FLS program.  Libby Goldes asked if the 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

Bell tower is an alternate additive and what is the price.  It is included in the price at 
this point according to Riley from Dick Anderson Construction.  This gives the 
opportunity for savings depending on contingencies budget and will have alternative 
pricing.  Central budget - Langlas is GCCM on this project.  The total budget is 
$15,915,510 with the cost of approximately $222 per square foot.  There is a 
significant amount of square footage.  Luke asked about the IT server room and 
Kalli said that adds to cost. Libby asked about IT space in comparison to HMS.  
This space will just be a server room, currently temperature being a significant issue.  
Terry asked about amount of Divisions verses 16 at Central verses 14 at Bryant and 
Kalli stated that each GCCM has the ability to bundle their items within their 
divisions.  Luke asked the maximum student capacity.  Bryant and Central 
Elementary Schools are built to house 350-375 students while 498 students at Jim 
Darcy. Luke stated he is wanting to be careful that we spend our money on what we 
told the public we were.  Luke stated he appreciates all the work.  Terry Beaver 
stated he didn’t see a line item there for landscaping?  Kalli said it is included under 
site work.  Motion:  Jeff Hindoien moved to approve Bryant Elementary Budget.  
Libby Goldes seconded.  Public comment – none.  The motion passed.  Motion:  Jeff 
Hindoien moved to approve Central Elementary Budget.  Sanjay Talwani seconded.  
Public comment – none. The motion passed. 

e.  Warren Safety and Security Upgrades.  This will complete Warren and recommend 
award to Beason Enterprises for a total of $248,196. Luke asked about the doors. 
Kalli said we understood there is so much vulnerably and the design needed to be 
enhanced.  First set of doors unlocked and can be buzzed into next vestibule, and 
sign in and staff grants access.  Window slider once they are bussed in.  Then 
buzzed into the third vestibule.  A teacher coming in through will have a badge entry 
and keyless entry.  Is there a system to monitor who is coming into the school Libby 
asked.  Kalli said they have added cameras.  In the main building there will be a 
monitor who is coming and going.  Motion:  Jeff moved to approve to Beason 
Enterprise.  Luke seconded.  Public comment – none.  The motion passed. 

f.  HMS Upgrades:  Recommended contractor is Wadsworth Builders.  At front entry 
two set of double doors, and buzzed into next set of doors.  There is a space under 
stairs to utilize and very cost effective.  There is a lot of wiring to be done at the 
middle school.  Completion date was changed from Aug to Dec.  Terry Beaver 
asked if this design accommodated the ADA.  Libby Goldes asked if the approach to 
this is that portions of the buildings can be sectioned off and for after-hours use as 
well as safety measures.  Is that a paring wall? Terry asked timeline Aug 22.  Jeff 
Hindoien moved to approve award to Wadsworth Builders 544, 770.  Luke 
Muszkiewicz seconded. Public comment – none.  The motion passed. 

 
VI. CONSENT ACTION ITEMS: 

1. School Property Surplus:  District Furniture and Tools:  Motion:  Libby Goldes moved to 
approve Consent Action Items and Luke Muszkiewicz seconded.  Luke asked to go through to 
identify how we do as a closed bid.  The second resolution is specific to disposition of power.  
Janelle said much simpler and with art supplies there a time and date that you have to get your 
bids in by or it will be disposed of.  It will be in the notice as amended resolution.  Kalli time 
range for consent action bids.  There is no date picked yet for another surplus sale yet and will 
be a continuation of this.  Kalli would like to have the bid sale before we move to the new 
building.  

 
 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life. 
 

 

VII. Board Comments:  Libby 11th year on the board and has been a major projects and being on 
those sites tomorrow will be exciting.  She wants to remind us that there are other schools that 
she hopes to see in the works in the future.  She thanked everyone for their hard work. 
       

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other topics for future meetings, and no public comments on issues not on the 
agenda, the meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m.   
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
 

Sarah Sullivan, Chair 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
 

     Janelle Mickelson, Clerk    Date 
 



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life.   

    
` Superintendent              Business Manager 

Jack Copps                                        Janelle Mickelson 
324-2001                                        324-2040 

 
Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

 
May Butler Center 

55 S. Rodney 
 

Thursday April 5, 2018 
12:00pm 

 
 

Minutes 
 

Attendance 
Sarah Sullivan, Board Chair 
Terry Beaver, Board Vice Chair 
Tyler Emmert, Trustee 
Elizabeth “Libby” Goldes, Trustee 
Jeff Hindoien, Trustee 
Sanjay Talwani, Trustee 
 
Jack Copps, Superintendent 
Greg Upham, Assistant Superintendent 
Janelle Mickelson, Business Service Administrator  
Barbara Ridgway, Administrator, Staff & Student Services 
Joslyn Davidson, Curriculum and Instructional Administrator 
Trish Klock, HEA President 
Lisa Cordingley, Helena Education Foundation Executive Director 
Jessica Evans, Executive Assistant 
Erin Loranger, Independent Record 
Margret Bentwood, Guest 
 
           
I. CALL TO ORDER Vice Chair, Terry Beaver called the meeting to order at 12:11pm.  
 
II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT No Comments  
 
III. REVIEW OF AGENDA    
Removal of Superintendent contract from the agenda. It is not complete yet per Board Chair, Sarah Sullivan. 
 
IV. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Items for Action 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. Special Board Meeting Minutes 3-7-18; Libby Goldes moved to approve minutes, 
Jeff Hindoien seconded, action passed, minutes approved.  



 

Helena Public Schools foster dynamic educational experiences that prepare all students for life.   

ii. Special Board Meeting Minutes 3-8-18; Libby Goldes moved to approve minutes, 
Jeff Hindoien seconded, action passed, minutes approved.  

b. 2018 Ballot Certification: Janelle Mickelson mentioned that the ballot is required to be 
certified, “this is how the ballet will appear…write-ins are due by 5pm today (April 5). The 
Elementary School levy is requesting $239,983 which is about 2.36 mils and affects a 
$100,000 home by $3.19 and a $200,000 home at $6.37…and that’s annual.” Terry Beaver 
brought up East Helena, “will we do another wolf creek election?” Janelle, “Not until next 
year…we will have a rep from Wolf Creek and Trinity”.  Discussion regarding the 
Elementary number not being as high as it was. It was at $333,000 per Janelle.  

i. Jeff Hindoien moved to approve Elementary District. Seconded by Sanjay, motion 
carried, approved. 

ii. Jeff Hindoien moved to approve High School District. Seconded by Sanjay, motion 
carried, approved. 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT  
There being no other topics for future meetings, and no public comments on issues not on the agenda, the meeting 
adjourned at 12:29 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

Sarah Sullivan, Chair 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
     Janelle Mickelson, Clerk    Date 

 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: HSD Board of Trustees 

FROM: Kalli Kind 
 Director of Support Services 
 Helena Public Schools 
 
DATE: April 24, 2018 
 
RE: Construction Budget Approval – Jim Darcy Elementary School 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The total construction budget for the new Jim Darcy Elementary School including contingency is 
$15,301,488.  This budget resulted from iterations of design review, bid estimates and value engineering 
amongst a collaborative team effort from the HSD, Hulteng, DSA and DAC. 
 
The budget reflects 16% of the construction costs bid and awarded to date.  The remaining construction 
costs are scheduled for bid on May 15, 2018. 
 
This construction budget is within the allocated bond construction funds.  It is my recommendation to 
approve the total construction budget for the new Jim Darcy Elementary School. 
  
Regards, 
Kalli Kind 

 
Kalli Kind 
Director of Support Services 
Helena School District 
 
 
 
 
 

Commented [KK1]:  



Division Description Summary Total
01 General Conditions 797,359$                   
02 Temp E Parking Lot & New Well 60,300$                     
02 Sitework, Utilities & Demolition 743,584$                   
02 W Parking Lot 100,000$                   
02 Misc Sitework (fencing, landscaping) 214,088$                   
03 Concrete 711,435$                   
04 Masonry 554,428$                   
05 Steel 1,595,988$                
06 Carpentry 322,680$                   
07 Thermal/Moisture 1,467,148$                
08 Windows/Doors 778,385$                   
09 Interior Finishes 2,376,623$                
10 Specialties 337,878$                   

11, 12 Equipment & Furnishings 404,441$                   
14 Fire Sprinkler 503,617$                   
15 Mechanical 1,847,290$                
16 Electrical 1,120,020$                

Subtotal 13,935,264$             
GCCM Fee 591,206$                   

Total Construction 14,526,470$             
Temp Heat & Cover 67,000$                     

Owners Contingency 625,174$                   
Global Budget Contingency 82,844$                     

Total Budget 15,301,488$             

Jim Darcy Elementary School - Helena, MT
Overall Budget Summary

24-Apr-18

708,018$        



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: HSD Board of Trustees 

FROM: Kalli Kind 
 Director of Support Services 
 Helena Public Schools 
 
DATE: April 24, 2018 
 
RE: New Bryant School Plat and Quit Claim Deed 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The attached final plat reflects the aggregate site for the new Bryant Elementary School.  The plat 
encompasses the current school site, purchased Boulder properties, alley, vacated section of Sanders St. 
and district maintenance shop.  The new plat increases the current school site from 1.93 acres to 3.863 
acres. 
 
The final Bryant plat is a required condition for City of Helena Sanders St. vacate request. 
 
Regards, 
Kalli Kind 
 
Kalli Kind 
Director of Support Services 
Helena School District 
 
 
 
 
 















HELENA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO., LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO DISPOSE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, the trustees of any district have the power and the responsibility to hold in trust 

all real and personal property of the District for the benefit of the schools and children of the district, 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, the trustees of any district have the authority to determine that certain personal 
property of the District is or is about to become abandoned, obsolete, undesirable, or unsuitable for 
the school purposes of the district pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 20-6-604, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the District owns items of personnel property consisting of maintenance 
vehicles; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Helena School District No. 1 desires to sell or dispose 

of such maintenance vehicles because they are abandoned, obsolete, undesirable or unsuitable for 
school purposes; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Helena School District 
No. 1, Lewis and Clark County, Montana, shall sell or otherwise dispose of the furniture and tools 
identified in the attachment by public sale to be conducted at a time and place to be determined by 
the District Superintendent.  In the event that no bids are received for an item listed on the attached 
list, the District will dispose of the items(s) in any manner deemed appropriate.  

 
This Resolution shall not become effective for 14 days.  Upon expiration of the 14-day period, 

the Superintendent of the District shall effectuate the sale or disposal of the above-described property.  
Money realized from the sale of any of the above-identified items shall be credited to the building 
fund. 
 
Adopted this 24th day of April 2018. 

 

By:________________________________ 

         Vice-Chairperson, Board of Trustees 

 

DISTRICT CLERK CERTIFICATION: 

I attest the above-referenced signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees, and 
further certify as follows:  ______________ made the motion to approve this 
RESOLUTION TO DISPOSE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY and _________________ 



seconded the motion; the following Trustees voted in favor of the motion: 
_____________________________________________; the following Trustees voted 
against: ________________; and the following Trustees were absent: 
_____________________________________________________. 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

 Janelle Mickelson, District Clerk 

 Helena School District No. 1 

 



SHOP VEHICLES VIN

1990 Chevrolet C2500 1GCDK24KOLE224442

1991 GMC Safari 1GTEG25K8M7507975

1976 GMC C2500 TKL236J502390

1994 Chevrolet C1500 2QEK19K19K6R1261743

1996 Chevrolet K1500 1GDEK1425RZ550799

1987 GMC R1500 CO7erI4h4HS526620

1994 Chevrolt G10 TGL36845181105

1994 Chevrolet G10 2GCGG35K6J4145473

1989 Chevrolet C3500 2GCGK39N6K1230755


	4-24-18 Board Work Session Agenda
	I.         TOUR OF SCHOOL / CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	1. Montana Economics Challenge 2018 April 24
	2. CHS Board Presentation April 2018
	�����Capital High School�School Board Presentation�4.24.18
	Where are we at:
	Clubs at CHS
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Art Seen
	Fundraiser for L and C County Library
	AP Data
	AP Courses at CHS
	Dual Credit Courses found at CHS:
	Cont.
	How much do students save? In the fall…
	In the spring, and for the entire year…
	ACT Data Summary
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	District Writing Assessment 
	Slide Number 30
	Mentoring Program
	Mentoring 2017-18, 1st Semester
	SLC DATA 2017-18, 1st Semester
	Role of the BLC
	Capital High School—MBI/MTSS���
	Slide Number 36
	 Platinum Level Recognition 
	MBI/MTSS 
	Capital Code
	Teaching “The Code”
	Slide Number 41
	Student Voice ~ Teacher Voice ~ Parent Voice 
	New Developments

	3-20-18 Board Work Session Minutes
	Board Work Session
	Tuesday, March 20, 2018

	Special Board Meeting Minutes 4-5-18
	Board of Trustees Special Meeting
	May Butler Center
	55 S. Rodney
	Thursday April 5, 2018
	12:00pm
	Minutes
	I. CALL TO ORDER Vice Chair, Terry Beaver called the meeting to order at 12:11pm.
	II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT No Comments
	III. REVIEW OF AGENDA
	IV. NEW BUSINESS
	1. Items for Action
	a. Approval of Minutes
	i. Special Board Meeting Minutes 3-7-18; Libby Goldes moved to approve minutes, Jeff Hindoien seconded, action passed, minutes approved.
	ii. Special Board Meeting Minutes 3-8-18; Libby Goldes moved to approve minutes, Jeff Hindoien seconded, action passed, minutes approved.
	b. 2018 Ballot Certification: Janelle Mickelson mentioned that the ballot is required to be certified, “this is how the ballet will appear…write-ins are due by 5pm today (April 5). The Elementary School levy is requesting $239,983 which is about 2.36 ...
	i. Jeff Hindoien moved to approve Elementary District. Seconded by Sanjay, motion carried, approved.
	ii. Jeff Hindoien moved to approve High School District. Seconded by Sanjay, motion carried, approved.

	5. Jim Darcy Construction Budget MOU
	5a .Jim Darcy Construction Budget 24Apr2018
	6 Bryant New Plat  Quit Claim Deed MOU 24Apr2018
	6a Bryant Bond Plat and Quit Claim Deed Apr 24
	7. Resolution to Dispose of Personal Property April 24
	7a. Copy of Surplus Sale - Vehicles

